ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE LABOR AND COMVERCE STANDI NG COWM TTEE
April 15, 2015
4:47 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Kurt O son, Chair
Represent ati ve Shel |l ey Hughes, Vice Chair
Representative Ji m Col ver

Representative Gabrielle LeDoux
Representative Cathy Tilton
Represent ati ve Andy Josephson
Representative Sam Kito

VEMBERS ABSENT
Representative M ke Chenault (alternate)
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 12

"An Act relating to nortgage |ending, nortgage |oan originators,
depository institutions, nonprofit organizations, and nonprofit
or gani zati on enpl oyees; and providing for an effective date."

- MOVED CSHB 12(L&C) OQUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BILL NO 159
"An Act exenpting certain health care agreenents from regul ation
as i nsurance."

- HEARD & HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 185

"An Act relating to alcoholic beverages; relating to the
regul ation of nmanufacturers, wholesalers, and retailers of
al coholic beverages; relating to I|icenses, endorsenents, and
permts involving al coholic beverages; relating to the Al coholic
Beverage Control Board; relating to offenses involving al coholic
beverages; relating to the offense of mnor consumng; relating
to revocation of a driver's license for a mnor consum ng
of fense; relating to the effect of the revocation of a driver's
license for a mnor consuming offense on a notor vehicle
l[tability insurance policy; and providing for an effective
date."

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -1- April 15, 2015



- HEARD & HELD

SENATE BILL NO 71

“"An Act relating to the practice of pharmacy; and relating to
t he adm ni stration of vacci nes and rel ated enmer gency
medi cations. "

- MOVED SB 71 OQUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BI LL NO. 47

"An Act relating to exenptions for cash surrender val ues,
accrued dividends, and |oan values of life insurance and annuity
contracts."

- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 12

SHORT TITLE: MORTGAGE LENDI NG AND LOAN ORI Gl NATORS
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) HUGHES

01/ 21/ 15 (H) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 9/ 15

01/ 21/ 15 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 21/ 15 (H L&C

04/ 13/ 15 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

04/ 13/ 15 (H) Heard & Hel d

04/ 13/ 15 (H M NUTE( L&C)

04/ 15/ 15 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

BILL: HB 159
SHORT TI TLE: HEALTH CARE RETAI NER; | NSURANCE EXEMPT
SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) KELLER

03/ 23/ 15 (H) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 23/ 15 (H) L&C
04/ 15/ 15 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

BILL: HB 185
SHORT TI TLE: ALCOHOLI C BEVERAGE CONTROL
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) HERRON

04/ 09/ 15 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
04/ 09/ 15 (H) L&C, JUD

04/ 15/ 15 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

BILL: SB 71

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 2- April 15, 2015



SHORT TI TLE: VACCI NE CERTI FI CATI ON FOR PHARMACI STS
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) G ESSEL BY REQUEST

03/ 11/ 15 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS

03/ 11/ 15 (S) L&C

03/ 17/ 15 (S) L&C AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

03/ 17/ 15 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 17/ 15 (S) M NUTE( L&C)

03/ 19/ 15 (S) L&C AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

03/ 19/ 15 (S) Moved SB 71 Qut of Committee

03/ 19/ 15 (S) M NUTE( L&C)

03/ 20/ 15 (S) L&C RPT 5DP

03/ 20/ 15 (S) DP: COSTELLO, G ESSEL, MEYER STEVENS,
ELLIS

03/ 20/ 15 (S) FI N REFERRAL ADDED AFTER L&C

04/ 02/ 15 (S) FIN AT 1:30 PM SENATE FI NANCE 532

04/ 02/ 15 (S) Heard & Hel d

04/ 02/ 15 (S) M NUTE( FI N)

04/ 10/ 15 (S) FIN RPT 4DP 1NR

04/ 10/ 15 (S) DP; MACKI NNON, M CCl CHE, Bl SHOP,
HOFFMAN

04/ 10/ 15 (S) NR: DUNLEAVY

04/ 10/ 15 (S) FIN AT 9: 00 AM SENATE FI NANCE 532

04/ 10/ 15 (S) Moved SB 71 Qut of Committee

04/ 10/ 15 (S) M NUTE( FI N)

04/ 13/ 15 (S) TRANSM TTED TO (H)

04/ 13/ 15 (S) VERSION: SB 71

04/ 13/ 15 (H READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS

04/ 13/ 15 (H) L&C, FIN

04/ 15/ 15 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

Bl LL: SB 47

SHORT TITLE: LI FE | NSURANCE/ ANNUI TY EXEMPTI ONS
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) COGHI LL

02/ 11/ 15 (S READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
02/ 11/ 15 (S) L&C, JUD

02/ 26/ 15 (S) L&C AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
02/ 26/ 15 (S) Heard & Hel d

02/ 26/ 15 (S) M NUTE( L&C)

03/ 03/ 15 (S) L&C AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
03/ 03/ 15 (S Moved SB 47 Qut of Commttee

03/ 03/ 15 (S) M NUTE( L&C)

03/ 04/ 15 (9 L&C RPT 3DP

03/ 04/ 15 (9 DP: G ESSEL, MEYER, STEVENS

03/ 16/ 15 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
03/ 16/ 15 (S) Heard & Hel d

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 3- April 15, 2015



03/ 16/ 15 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

03/ 25/ 15 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

03/ 25/ 15 (S Bills Previously Heard/ Schedul ed:
03/ 30/ 15 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
03/ 30/ 15 (S -- Reschedul ed from 3/25/15 --
03/ 31/ 15 (S) JUD RPT 3DP 1NR

03/ 31/ 15 (S) DP: MCGUI RE, COSTELLO, COGHI LL
03/ 31/ 15 (S) NR: W ELECHOWSKI

04/ 09/ 15 (S) TRANSM TTED TO (H)

04/ 09/ 15 (S) VERSI ON: SB 47

04/ 10/ 15 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
04/ 10/ 15 (H) L&C

04/ 15/ 15 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

W TNESS REG STER

G NCGER BLAI SDELL, Staff

Represent ati ve Shel |l ey Hughes

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Speaki ng on behalf of the prine sponsor,
Representati ve Shel | ey Hughes, provided an overview of HB 12.

KEN TRUI TT, Staff

Representati ve Wes Kel |l er

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of the sponsor,
Representative Wes Kell er, during the discussion of HB 159.

REPRESENTATI VE WES KELLER

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as prine sponsor of HB 159.

REPRESENTATI VE BOB HERRON

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions as prine
sponsor of HB 185.

JANE CONWAY, Staff

Senat or Cathy G essel

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions on behal f
of the sponsor on SB 71, Senator Cathy G essel.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -4- April 15, 2015



SENATOR CATHY G ESSEL

Al aska State Legislature

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions as prine
sponsor of SB 71.

BARRY CHRI STENSEN, Co- Chair

Al aska Pharmaci sts Associ ation

Ket chi kan, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 71.

LI S HOUCHEN, Counsel; NW Regional Director

Nat i onal Associ ati on of Chain Drugstores (NACD)
Arlington, Virginia

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 71.

RYAN RUGGLES, Phar maci st

Carr s- Saf eway

Sitka, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 71.

GERVAN BAQUERO, Intern

Senat or John Coghi |l |

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of the prinme sponsor of
SB 47.

RYNNI EVA MOSS, St aff

Senat or John Coghi l |

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of SB 47.

LORI WNG HElI ER, Director

Di vi sion of Insurance

Depart ment of Comrerce, Community, & Econom c Devel opnent ( DCCED)
Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions during the discussion of
SB 47.

MATTHEW BLATTMACHR, Vi ce- Presi dent & Trust O ficer

Al aska Trust Conpany

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of SB 47.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 5- April 15, 2015



LI NDA HULBERT
Fai r banks, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of SB 47.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
4:47:10 PM

CHAIR KURT COLSON called the House Labor and Commerce Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 4:47 p.m Representatives Tilton,
LeDoux, Kito, Hughes, and O son were present at the call to
order. Representati ves Josephson and Colver arrived as the
meeting was in progress.

HB 12- MORTGAGE LENDI NG AND LOAN ORI G NATORS

4:47:40 PM

CHAI R OLSON announced that the first order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO. 12 "An Act relating to nortgage |ending, nortgage
| oan originators, depository institutions, nonprof it
or gani zati ons, and nonprofit organi zati on enpl oyees; and
providing for an effective date."

4:48: 44 PM

G NGCER BLAI SDELL, Staff, Representative Shelley Hughes, Al aska
State Legislature, speaking on behalf of the sponsor of HB 12,
Representati ve Hughes, offered to give the 50,000 foot version
of this bill. By changing sonme of the state's statutes
regarding nortgage licensing, this bill wll create an equal-
playing field for nortgage brokers, nortgage |oan originators,
and a simlar oversight to banks or registered depository
institutions.

4:49: 21 PM
CHAIR OLSON said that this bill was originally opposed by the
Al aska Bankers Association, but the changes in the comittee

substitute seened to neutralize the opposition to the bill.

CHAIR OLSON, after first determning no one wi shed to testify,
cl osed public testinony on HB 12.

4:49:45 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 6- April 15, 2015



REPRESENTATI VE TILTON noved the proposed conmittee substitute
(CS) for HB 12, |abeled 29-LS0089\H, Bannister, 4/10/15 out of
commttee with individual recomendations and the acconpanying
fiscal notes. There being no objection, CSHB 12(L&C) was
reported fromthe House Labor and Commerce Standing Conmttee.

4:50: 11 PM
The commttee took an at-ease from4:50 p.m to 4:52 p. m

HB 159- HEALTH CARE RETAI NER; | NSURANCE EXENMPT

4:52:28 PM

CHAI R OLSON announced that the next order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 159, "An Act exenpting certain health care
agreenents fromregul ati on as i nsurance."

4:53: 38 PM
REPRESENTATI VE WES KELLER, Alaska State Legislature, stated he

served on the Al aska Health Conm ssion in 2007. He has becone
convinced that health care reform neans that the narket nust be

wor ki ng. This bill woul d  exenpt di rect primary care
associations from the Alaska insurance code definitions of
i nsur ance. The bill would not propose any new regul ations or
incur additional expenses. This would allow primary care
physicians to have contractual agreenent wth patients for
primary care services. It would renove the third party payer
since patients would subscribe to the primary care service. He
characterized it as the doctor being one call away. The
contracts would be handled by existing law. He offered that the
positive effects of this bill include inproved quality and

access of care that patients would have with their provider,
whi ch could reduce overall health care cost since admnistrative
costs are drastically reduced. Further, the nunmber of patients
per doctor is also higher than the current system He
hi ghlighted that doctors often have 15 mnutes per patient and
if one takes longer it can create stress for everyone.

4:57.:04 PM
REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES t hanked for bringing this concept forward.

She asked how rei nbursenent would work for the patient since it
will prohibit the provider frombilling insurance.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -7- April 15, 2015



KEN TRU TT, Staff, Representative Ws Keller, Al aska State
Legi slature, on behalf of the prine sponsor, Representative Wes
Keller, said the concept behind the bill is that it wouldn't
change any existing relationshinp. Patients can still seek
rei mbursenent for their primary care costs, including nmenbership
into the primary care network.

4:58: 03 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES asked whether insurers will pay a nonthly
service fee and if patient and doctor contracts happen in other
st at es.

MR, TRUI TT said he was not certain. The |anguage for HB 159 was
nodel ed on legislation that passed in M chigan. He has al so
reviewed other states that have primary care |egislation,
i ncl udi ng Ut ah.

CHAI R OLSON answered that several bills before the legislature
this session are related to nedical costs.

4:58: 51 PM
REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked for further clarification on whether
this bill would prohibit the doctors from billing insurance
compani es.

MR TRUTT answered yes; that the concept was to relieve

physicians from dealing with third-party payers. For exanpl e,
he said that billing manuals for Blue Cross was over 200 pages
and showed several. The benefit from the provider would be

paynent via contract with the patient and no | onger need to deal
with the third party payers.

5:00: 00 PM
CHAI R OLSON asked for a copy of the nmanual s.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER offered to provide it.

5:00: 09 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX said that currently sone doctors hold down
fees by not billing insurance. She asked the reason to have
statutory provisions that prohibit doctors from billing an

i nsurance conpany since doctors can currently opt not to bil

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 8- April 15, 2015



i nsur ance. She said it seened to interfere, which didn't seem
like limted governnent to her.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER offered to provide the logic from other
st at es.

5:01: 06 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KI TO asked which provider networks would use this
pr ogr am He asked whether any doctor's office or conpany was
seeking an alternate option or if it was a concept that the
sponsor wanted to nake avail abl e.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER replied he did not specifically know of
anyone although he has doctor friends who have expressed
interest or positively inclined. He said he becane acquainted
with health care agreenents via the Al aska Health Conmm ssion,
however, this type of contract is not currently avail abl e.

5:02: 08 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KI TO asked whether these health care agreenent
contracts will result in nonthly fees for patients or a fee for
servi ces. He was unsure how the patient would find the billing

code and the amount of the procedure.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER answered that this bill does not speak to
fees, but he noted it would need to be addressed. He said this
bill allows contracts between doctor and their patients. He
surm sed that some of these contracts or subscriptions mght
even include clauses for visitor care. For exanple, a patient
m ght pay a certain anount for a subscription for primary care,
which allows visiting famly or friends to use the service when
in town. He said that in other states the rates have ranged
from $80-$200 per nonth for these subscriptions.

5:04: 07 PM
REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON asked for the client and patient care
protections that mnmght be given up in terns of regulatory

protections in order to accrue the benefits.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER answered that he wasn't aware of any
increased risk to patients.

5:04:55 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -9- April 15, 2015



CHAIR OLSON offered that the sponsor may continue work during
the legislative interim

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER said that the D vision of |nsurance has
indicated a willingness to work on this bill during the interim

5:05: 33 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX noted that this bill doesn't prohibit
doctors from billing insurance, but the process would be
addressed as part of the contract. She recall ed reading about
these services, also known as concierge services, in which
peopl e pay $200-300 per nonth to have the benefit of private
physi ci ans. She recalled that concierge plans have becone
popular in California in order for people to avoid dealing with
Medi caid, Medicare, and the various private insurers. Agai n,
she said, it mght be difficult if the doctor doesn't provide
billing information, but sone people nmight be interested in this
to get a doctor's appointnent.

5:06: 56 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER said many stories are available online
that illustrate the benefits of this type of health care.

[ HB 159 was hel d over.]

5:07: 36 PM

The conmttee took an at-ease from5:07 p.m to 5:08 p. m
5:08: 23 PM

HB 185- ALCOHCOL|I C BEVERAGE CONTROL

CHAI R CLSON announced that the next order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 185, "An Act relating to alcoholic beverages;
relating to the regulation of manufacturers, wholesalers, and
retailers of al coholic beverages; relating to |icenses,
endor senent s, and permits involving alcoholic beverages;
relating to the Alcoholic Beverage Control Board; relating to
of fenses involving alcoholic beverages; relating to the offense
of m nor consumng; relating to revocation of a driver's |icense
for a mnor consumng offense; relating to the effect of the
revocation of a driver's license for a mnor consum ng offense
on a notor vehicle liability insurance policy; and providing for
an effective date.™

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 10- April 15, 2015



5:09: 00 PM

REPRESENTATI VE BOB HERRON, Al aska State Legislature, stated that
HB 185 was the Title 4, [AS 04] rewite, noting a conpanion bil

was in the other body. He said that Title 04 reqgulates
al coholic beverages and the ABC Board [Alcoholic Beverage
Control Board (ABC Board)], its staff, and |law enforcenent carry

out these |aws. These statutes haven't been reviewed since
1980, al though nunerous updates have occurred. He suggested it
was tinme for a review During the spring 2012, sixty

st akehol ders and staff dedicated tinme to make recommendations to
i nprove the structure, organization, the policies, and the
i npl enentation of AS 04. He |isted stakeholders, including the
al cohol i ndustry, public health, | ocal gover nment , | aw
enforcenent, public safety, education, the court system and
community outreach sectors.

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON hi ghlighted two review goals, including
pronoting a fair business climate and protecting health and
public safety. Further, the stakehol der wanted to nmake Title 04
a clear and consistent legal framework that can be wused by
i censees, the ABC Board, and |aw enforcemnent. He offered that
the bill consists of a conprehensive packet of interrelated
proposal s for revision.

5:10: 08 PM
REPRESENTATI VE HERRON agreed the report would make a stout

doorstop, but this was the first tinme all the stakehol ders have
| ooked at how Title 4 can be inproved. He envisioned that the

stakeholders will |look forward to interim work and he hoped the
| egislature will pass this bill or the conpanion bill next year.
5:10: 59 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON said he would be |ooking for the
consensus and real "buy in" for the bill.

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON stated his belief that the "buy in" has

al ready happened. He said he will continue to work with all the
stakehol ders, noting the legislative process brings unusual and
unf oreseen circunstances and influences. He offered that the
st akehol ders will have the tedious job of keeping the package
together while still allow ng for suggestions.

5:12: 23 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -11- April 15, 2015



REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON said that seened to suggest if the bill
passed as witten everyone will be equally content.

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON thought "equally content” was a little

gener ous. However, at this point the bill essentially been the
st akehol ders' product, but now it wll go through the public
process.

CHAIR OLSON offered his belief that the sponsor is a consensus
bui | der.

5:13: 20 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked whether the commttee wll be
hearing testinony from stakeholders that it shouldn't amend this
or that since it will destroy the consensus.

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON answered that everyone recognizes the
pr ocess. He suggested it will take "all hands on deck" to get
the bill through the process and the stakehol ders know what to
expect. He said that Title 4 [AS 04] as currently witten has
beconme very clunsy. Al t hough stakeholders are commtted, they
recogni ze that the legislative process will bring out undue and
unf oreseen i nfl uences.

5:14: 27 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES said she has been involved in the process
and predicted that it wll be a delicate balance to pass the
bill. She offered her belief that the stakeholders agree this
process needs to happen. She said she was glad Representative
Herron is at the helmwith this bill since everyone will need to
wor k together given the significant conprom se that has happened
during the process of creating the draft bill. Everyone did not

get what they wanted, but worked to achieve bal ance, she said.
She said she appreciated the chair bringing this bill forward to
all ow work to occur during the interim

[ HB 185 was hel d over.]

SB 71- VACCI NE CERTI FI CATI ON FOR PHARVACI STS

5:15:52 PM

CHAI R OLSON announced that the final order of business would be
SENATE BILL NO 71, "An Act relating to the practice of

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -12- April 15, 2015



pharmacy; and relating to the admnistration of vaccines and
rel ated energency nedications.”

5:16:16 PM
JANE CONVAY, Staff, Senator Cathy G essel, Al aska State

Legislature, on behalf of the prinme sponsor, Senator Cathy
G essel, stated that SB 71 would allow Al aska pharmacists to

adm nister all vacci nes W t hout a collaborative practice
agr eenent . Since 2001, Alaska pharnmacists have required
oversight by nedical doctor or a nurse practitioner to
adm ni ster vacci nes. These oversight practice agreenments cost
$50-500 annual ly for pharmaci sts depending on the agreement with
the oversight physician or nurse practitioner. The oversight

anounts to the physician or nurse practitioner overseeing the
i nmuni zation records.

5:17:28 PM

M5. CONVWAY offered that sone pharmacies have difficulty finding
a collaborative nedical doctor or nurse practitioner and this
hurdl e reduces access to needed vaccines to the public. Thi s
bill, SB 71 will give already educated and certified pharmacists
the authority to immnize Al askan adults and children w thout
having to contract wth often hard to find an overseeing
physi cian or nurse practitioner.

M5. CONVWAY expl ained that the appropriate clinical procedure for
vaccine admnistration is part of the course work for a pharnacy
doctorate degree, which has been the case since 2005. The |evel
of entry into the pharmacist position is a doctorate or PhD of
phar macol ogy. Under the bill, pharmacists educated prior to
2005 are required to inmunization education program outlined by
t he Board of Pharnacy.

5:19: 23 PM

SENATOR CATHY d ESSEL, Al aska State Legislature, stated that the
Board of Pharnmacy would provide a vaccine admnistration

pr ogram The pharmacists already wunderstand the vaccines,
i ncludi ng the pharmacol ogy and side effects, but they would be
polishing their skills on the admnistration. Their education

already includes the drug therapy, dosing, and adverse events.
How to respond to adverse events was a question raised in the

other conmttees. When she prescribes she often asks
pharmaci sts for information since they know the drugs and are
definitely qualified [to admnister vaccines]. In addition,

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 13- April 15, 2015



this bill would help rural comunities since people often have
nore interaction with their pharmacists than they do their
health care providers. Many states already authorize this and
have experienced higher inmmunization rates, which Al aska could
benefit from

5:20: 54 PM

SENATOR Q3 ESSEL expl ai ned t hat t he st at ew de dat abase
"vacstracks" was used to track vaccines. Phar maci sts woul d be
required to enter the vaccine data, which is accessible to all
health care providers in the state. In 2013, pharnmacists
adm nistered over 13,000 flu vaccines. This bill could

definitely make nore  vacci nes avai |l abl e t hr ough t hese
phar maci st s and phar naci es.

5:21: 26 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked whet her pharmaci sts currently
required to enter data into the statew de dat abase.

SENATOR G ESSEL answered yes.
5:21:45 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES rel ated her wunderstanding that they are
trained on dosages. She asked whether pharmacists are also
trained in admnistering them

SENATOR G ESSEL answered that pharmaci sts from 2005 forward have
been educated in the admnistration of vaccines. Those
pharmaci sts educated prior to 2005 will be required to take the
vaccine admnistration course that the Board of Pharnmacy
approves.

5:22:16 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES asked whether taking patient's nedical
history was part of process since she did not think of
phar maci sts as taking nedical history.

SENATOR G ESSEL answered that currently for flu vaccines citizen
fills out a form citing nedications they currently take, any
allergies to nedications, and any chronic conditions they may
have. The sanme requirenents would happen with other vaccines
adm ni st er ed.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -14- April 15, 2015



5:23:02 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES wondered if this mght |ower the cost of
adm ni stration of vaccines.

SENATOR G ESSEL was unsure. Certainly, that would be the goa
and it will reduce the cost for the individual professionals who
adm ni ster the vaccines. Currently, it can take 6-12 nonths for
col | aborative agreenents to be solidified.

5:23: 57 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked for further <clarification that
adm ni stering neans actually giving the shots.

SENATOR G ESSEL answered yes.

5:24:10 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX said she really likes this bill. She
wondered whether it mght be possible in the future to allow
pharmaci sts sonme limted powers to prescribe drugs. She has

experienced picking up prescription drugs such as antibiotics in
ot her countri es.

SENATOR G ESSEL replied that it would require changes in the
phar maci sts' educational program to perform diagnosis. She said
that the state insurance program has nurse advice lines for
patients to receive advice.

5:25: 40 PM

REPRESENTATI VE  JOSEPHSON asked whet her the footprint of
phar maci es woul d need to change.

SENATOR G ESSEL answered that pharmacists currently adm nister
vacci nes so they already have the facilities.

5:26:27 PM

REPRESENTATIVE KITO related his understanding rural Al aska
experiences problens obtaining oversight agreenents. He asked
whet her ot her ci rcunst ances  exi st in which doctors or
pharmaci sts are having difficulties in putting together

agreenents.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 15- April 15, 2015



SENATOR d ESSEL answered that she was not certain and deferred
to the pharmacists to respond.

5:27:04 PM

BARRY CHRI STENSEN, Co-Chair, Al aska Pharmacists Association,
stated the Al aska Pharnmaci sts Associ ati on nenbershi p consists of
phar maci st s, phar maci es, and pharmacy technicians. The
association fully supports this bill, which he characterized as
a "wn-win-win" such that it will ensure that pharnacists who
are currently inmmunizing can continue to do so. It would also
open up open up inmunizations to pharmacists who have had
difficulty obtaining a partner for a collaborative practice

agreenent . Further, it would open up access to patients for
i mruni zati ons. Finally, it's a "win" for enployers since this
will keep people healthier. The Center for Disease Control has
reported that every dollar spent on immnization will save $10
in overall health care costs. This bill has support from "nmom

pop" pharnmacies to chain pharnacies.
5:28:58 PM

LI S HOUCHEN, Counsel, NW Regional D rector, National Association
of Chain Drugstores (NACD) stated that she represents chain drug
stores in the Northwest region, including Costco, Genoa Health
Car e, Good nei ghbor Health  Mart, Carr s- Saf eway, Tar get
Wal green, and Wal mart. She thanked nenbers for hearing this
inportant bill to allow pharmacists to independently prescribe
and adm ni ster immunizations in Al aska. She said that Senator
G essel nentioned that the state was not doing as good a job as
it could. In 2012, only 1.2 percent of Alaskans were immunized
for influenza flu, which ranked as 49th in the nation.

M5. HOUCHEN said that the organization was encouraged by SB 71
since many additional needed vaccines wll be admnistered in
| ocal villages by pharmacists to patients and famlies that may
ot herwi se go w thout being i mmuni zed.

5:30: 33 PM

CHAIR OLSON commented that he gets his flu shots at the
phar macy.

5:31:36 PM

RYAN RUGGLES, Pharmacist, Carrs-Safeway, stated that he works as
a pharmaci st and he currently adm ni sters vacci nes. He offered

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 16- April 15, 2015



strong support for SB 71, which all cones down to patient
access. Al though Carrs-Safeway stores has a «collaborative
practice provider that they regularly use, but if the provider
is traveling or wunavailable, it can take time to find a
substitute. Sonetinmes the pharmacists sinply waits for the
col | aborative practice provider to return.

5:32:56 PM

CHAIR OLSON, after first determning no one wished to testify,
cl osed public testinony on SB 71

5:33: 09 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COLVER remarked that this was an excellent bill.
He stated that this can help conbat health care costs. He
offered his belief that it was common in other countries to have
a streanlined process to admi nister vaccines. Further, a nunber
of people already obtain their immunizations from their
nei ghbor hood phar naci es.

5:33:37 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES acknow edged that pharnmaci sts eager to get
in place. She asked whether nurse practitioners and physicians
support this concept.

SENATOR G ESSEL answered that there has not been any opposition
to the bill.

5:34:11 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES noved to report SB 71 out of committee
with individual recomrendations and the acconpanying fiscal
not es. There being no objection, SB 71 was reported from the
House Labor and Commerce Standing Comm ttee.

The conmttee took a brief at ease.

SB 47- LI FE | NSURANCE/ ANNUI TY EXEMPTI ONS

5:34: 42 PM

CHAI R OLSON announced that the final order of business would be
SENATE BILL NO 47, "An Act relating to exenptions for cash
surrender values, accrued dividends, and loan values of life
i nsurance and annuity contracts."”

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -17- April 15, 2015



5:36:32 PM

GERVAN BAQUERO, Intern, Senator John Coghill, Alaska State
Legi sl ature, stated that Section 1 of SB 47 would repeal and
reenact one AS 09.38.025 (a), which will essentially repeal the

$500,000 cap on the exenption of wun-matured life insurance
policies, and reenacts it as a full exenption regardless of the
value limt. Section 2 of the bill clarifies the applicability
dat e.

5:37:27 PM

MR. BAQUERO said this bill came about when sone nenbers of
i nsurance industry and trust industry found nore private
enpl oyees are turning to l|life insurance and life insurance
policies as new estate and retirenent tools. He said that

granting a full exenption was a nmeans to treat all retirenent
funds as secured, just as public enployee retirenent accounts or
uni on accounts, which are conpletely shielded by the federal
government and not subject to garnishnent. He stated that a
zero fiscal note was attached to HB 47. He said that this bil
does not shield life insurance policies from any type of
crimnal action, but refers to civil litigation. He directed
attention to mnmenbers' bill packets to [AS 09.38.065] clains
enf orceabl e agai nst exenpt property that provides the list of
exceptions to the exenptions ranging from being able to |evy
agai nst property to enforcing child support clains.

5:39: 36 PM

MR. BAQUERO He read a portion of paragraph (3), which read, "(3)
a creditor may nmake a |evy against exenpt property of any kind
to enforce the claim of a victim including a judgnent of
restitution on behalf of a victim of a crine or a delinquent

act, ...." He interpreted this to nmean that this bill would not
stop sonmeone fromtrying to seek just restitution in a crimna
situation. He said that the bill has opposition fromthe Al aska

Bankers Association, who expressed concern that this could
create a nmeans to shield assets that could be garnished by a

bank, but the sponsor found that interpretation a little
want i ng. For one thing, the exenptions under AS 09.38.030
[(c)], related earnings and liquid assets clearly states a

creditor can levy upon the earning of an individual if the
creditor's claim is enforceable under an order of a court of
bankruptcy under the Bankruptcy Reform Act of 1978. Therefore
the concerns of the banking industry are not quite accurate in

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 18- April 15, 2015



ternms of a debtor trying to hide or commt fraud. Finally, this
bill does not interfere assigning a policy as collateral to a
bank for a loan. He directed attention to AS 34.40.010, rel ated
to invalidity generally, basically says that anyone who assigns
any of their property as collateral neans that the person is
assigning the property to them subject to garnishnent on any
default. He said there really is not any fraudul ent intent that
could conme along, but can help nmake life insurance policies nore
secure tools for estate planning while the policies remain un-
mat ur ed.

5:42: 57 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX related a scenario involving crimnal
action, but noted the standards of proof in a crimnal action
and a civil action are different. She asked for further
clarification that regardl ess of the amount of danmges, they can
keep the insurance policy that may be val uabl e.

MR. BAQUERO answered that the intent of the bill is not to
har bor savings, earnings, or investnment of an insurance policy;
instead, the intent is to secure the investnents a person nakes
in an insurance policy while the policy is un-nmatured. Once the
policies have matured and the assets have transferred over to
the beneficiary, the assets becone the property of the
beneficiary and are attachable. This bill was trying to put AS
09.38.025 in line with exenptions for retirenment plans under AS
09. 38. 017.

5:45:53 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked whether retirenment plans were
exenpt .

MR. BAQUERO answered there was no nunerical value limt since
they are fully exenpted.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX remarked she had sone problens with that,
t 0o.

5:46: 19 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES suppose soneone owes $500,000 to the
creditor. She asked whether the creditor can cone after the
debt or.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -19- April 15, 2015



MR. BAQUERO stated that currently under AS 09.38.025, when the
policy has matured the assets are attachable. This legislature
pertains to un-matured |life insurance and once the insurance was
mat ured, the assets are accessible to garnishnent. In further
response to Representative Hughes, he said that once the val ue
of the policy exceeds $500,000, it is subject to garnishment.

5:48: 11 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES rel at ed her understanding that was current
law, but if this bill passes it could not be garnished.

MR. BAQUERO answered that if the bill passed it would exenpt all
un-matured life insurance and annuity contracts regardless of
the value limt.

5:48: 37 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KI TO asked for the reason to nake these changes.
MR. BAQUERO answered that the trust and |ife insurance industry
has found that once clients were buying policies up to $500, 000,

they found that clients wanted nore protection simlar to the
protections that public enployees have with respect to social

security or the state's supplenental annuity plan. In fact the
top ten highest gross retirenent plans in the state's
suppl enental annuity were over $1 nmillion and were shiel ded from
gar ni shment . This bill was a neans to |level the playing field

from private enployees trying to find a new estate planning
t ool .

5:50: 27 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KITO asked for further clarification that in
creating additional security with the policy does it decrease
the cost to consuner for that policy.

MR. BAQUERO deferred to the trust industry to respond.
5:50: 55 PM

RYNNI EVA  MOSS, Staff, Senator John Coghill, Alaska State
Legi sl ature, echoed that the sponsor found that nany people who
wanted to invest noney in a retirenent system were limted to
$500,000 to obtain the sane benefits the wunion and public
enpl oyees have. In addition, the sponsor was interested in
building a trust industry in Alaska that helps to diversify the

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 20- April 15, 2015



econonmy and potentially result in $58 mllion in taxes to the

state in 2016. One disadvantage in getting people to invest
nore than $500,000 into a life insurance or annuity programis
that nmoney is not secure and is un-matured. Currently, the

Al aska Trust Industry in Al aska has $50 million deposited in
Northrim Bank since it is the limt for funds secured by FDIC
[ Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation]. The rest of their
funds are invested in noney markets and other investnents. In
concl usion, she recapped that the sponsor would like to create
an industry and incentive people to invest in larger life
i nsurance policies since the state assesses prem um taxes on the
life insurance policies.

5:52:44 PM

REPRESENTATIVE KITO offered his belief t hat i ndi vi dual s
i nvesting nore than $500, 000 woul d be a small pool in Al aska.

M5. MOSS answered that people fromthe Lower 48 invest in these
life insurance policies.

5:53:12 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX of fered her belief that the funds woul d be
secure so long as people did not get into accidents and paid
their bills.

MS. MOSS suggested that people can go to other states to get the

pol i ci es. She said that one objection the banks had was that
they couldn't get to a life insurance policy prior to the
i nsurance policy being issues. She said that banks are

responsible for obtaining collateral at the tinme noney is
| oaned. She suggested it was a |little disingenuous to reach out
after the fact and grab unto a |life insurance policy that was

purchased after |oans were approved with other collateral. She
suggested that if they issued a loan w thout an appropriate
amount of collateral would be the bank's decision. She said a

person shouldn't be punished for it.
5:54: 36 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked whether John Q Public who wants to
coll ect his debts.

M5. MOSS answered that state has exceptions to the exenptions,

which was a fairly lengthy list, but it does not give carte
bl anche protection or immunity from payi ng debts.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -21- April 15, 2015



5:55: 05 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON stated that in his experience wth
debtors/creditors [in his law practice], that nuch of what we
own is vulnerable. He suggested that nobst people are not
worried about it and take one step at a tine.

M5. MOSS directed attention to the issue of equal treatnent for
retirement and the opportunity to build a nest egg for

retirenent. She stated that public enployees and union
enpl oyees are protected under federal law with a $500,000 l[imt
for individuals. She acknow edged that this bill was a policy
call. She said that her issue is that anyone who wants

retirement system should be treated equally.
5.57.:24 PM

LORI WNG HEIER, Director, D vision of Insurance, Departnent of
Commerce, Comunity, & Econom c Devel opnent (DCCED), said she
testified on this bill in the Senate. She offered that the
i ndustry being discussed was new to Alaska. The life insurance
industry in Alaska has conme up with an idea that attenpts to
stinulate the insurance industry and provide sonething new to
the state. She said people could question the other
jurisdictions, such as Switzerland, have so much business in the
financial industry. She answered that it was because they have
created a favorable tax structure.

5:58:51 PM

M5. WNGHEIER said that Vernont has been renowned for its
captive insurance policies since Vernont built a good tax
structure, as have other jurisdictions, such as the Bahanas,
Bernmuda, and the Virgin Islands. She offered her belief that
Alaska's |ife insurance industry has expressed interest in
several changes, including the $500,000 issue, which is not
limted to Al askans but sone of the biggest polices in Al aska
are sold to nonresidents. She characterized Al aska's tax
structure as good, noting that after $100,000 the tax rate drops
from .1 to .08 percent prem um tax. | f Alaska can becone nore
conpetitive, the industry believes it can sell nobre and renoving
the $500,000 limt may help to do so. Secondly, life insurance
is a very safe retirenment vehicle for small enployers, who may
not feel confortable wth stocks and bonds. Once the insurance
reaches $500,000, it beconmes accessible to creditors. She
acknow edged everyone should pay their debts; however, the issue

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -22- April 15, 2015



of fair play should be considered, such that the public or
unions paying into their retirenent systens are protected, but
the private sector enployees are not. Thus creditors can access
t heir $500,000 or un-matured cash value, but they cannot access
t he public enployee's $500, 000.

6: 00: 46 PM

M5. WNG HEIER explained that this bill does not affect her
division since the Division of Insurance's statutes fall under
Title 21 [AS 21]; however, she has done sone research. She said
that [garnishnents] can happen on life insurance and annuities
with crimnal actions, but not wunder <civil actions. She
recalled the Division of Insurance did receive a letter fromthe
Departnent of Law to clarify that point.

6: 01: 38 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX expressed concern that the state m ght not
want to allow bank accounts, like Switzerland does, in which
peopl e can avoid | awsuits and ot her things.

M5. W NG HElI ER answered she used Switzerland as an exanple, but
noted that other jurisdictions that have taken actions on the
i nsurance or financial industries have had good success.

6: 02: 45 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON surmi sed the admnistration supports
this bill.

M5. W NG HEI ER answered that there has not been any opposition

to the bill. In further response, she clarified that the
division's statutes are under Title 21, not in Title 9 and the
bill affects AS 09 and the admi nistration has not given her any

direction on this bill.
6: 03:17 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON said he was in the process of vetting
SB 47, but he has found that normally when the departnent is
neutral on a bill, the admnistration doesn't necessarily
support the bill. He assumed that was the case with SB 47.

M5. WNG HEIER reiterated that this bill would affect AS 09 and
not the insurance code that falls under AS 21.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 23- April 15, 2015



6: 04: 25 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KI TO suggested that it mght be necessary to
protect consunmers and residents of Alaska, for exanple, if the
state was creating a new product, it will be inportant that the
product not harm anyone in Al aska. He said he would like to
| earn nore about potential inpacts on Al askans.

6: 05: 10 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES said [the changes proposed in SB 47]
sounds |like a new econom c opportunity. She asked whether this
could bring in hundreds of mllions to the state.

M5. WNG HEIER answered the insurance industry is the second
| argest contributor to the general fund in prem um taxes. | f
the insurance industry was right in its predictions, it could be
significant to Alaska. Certainly, the state charges 2.7 percent

as a rule on all premuns that cone into the state. Life
i nsurance taxes on premuns drop to 1 percent after $100,000 in
prem um She estimated that the premum taxes would be

approximately $55 or $56 million and if the market changed and
the industry can entice people from the Lower 48 to invest in
trusts, annuities, and life insurance, it could be significant
to the state.

6: 06: 36 PM

CHAIR OLSON asked for further clarification on the tax cap of
.08 percent.

M5. W NG HEI ER answered that another bill [SB 15] would reduce
the premumtax from1 percent to .08.

CHAI R OLSON asked for the projections on a bill that passed 3-4
years ago in which the state gave up prem umtaxes.

M5. WNG HEIER of fered to research and provide the information
6: 07: 50 PM

MATTHEW BLATTMACHR, Vice-President & Trust Oficer, Al aska Trust
Conpany, stated that Alaska Trust Conpany doesn't offer
i nsurance services nor was one that the conpany was pushing
forward, but the Al aska Trust Conpany supports it. He expl ained
that a substantial portion of its business conmes from estate
planning with Iife insurance and annuity contracts.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 24- April 15, 2015



6: 08: 44 PM

MR. BLATTMACHR asked how much was lost in revenue for the
previ ous premum taxes. He said the statute currently reads
that the state charges 2.7 percent on any prem um under 100, 000
and it drops ten basis points after $100,000. At the tinme that
bill passed, the Al aska Trust Conpany asked the D vision of
| nsurance for largest policy premum wth no policy in excess
of $50, 000. This didn't give up any premum tax revenue, but
gave an incentive to receive additional |arge policies.

6: 09: 50 PM

CHAI R OLSON asked whether the prior bill affected any prem um
tax inpact.

MR. BLATTMACHR testified it was his understanding it did not.

6: 10: 06 PM

CHAIR OLSON asked for further clarification on why the bill was
passed. He recalled it was going to bring in large prem um
pol i ci es.

MR. BLATTMACHR answered that did inpact a nunber of policies
that cane to the state, but it did not cost to inplenent the
changes.

6: 10: 47 PM

MR. BLATTMACHR said that the |ife insurance industry is grow ng
in Alaska and contributes to the state's econom c industry. He
said that the trust industry in Al aska deals with life insurance
alnmost on a daily base so it is in support of the bill as a
means of keeping Al aska as attractive environnment.

6:11: 25 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES related her wunderstanding that the | ast
change to 1 percent in taxes didn't affect revenue. She asked
what Al aska gai ned.

MR. BLATTMACHR answered that the discussion today was regarding
SB 47, but the tax change was contained in SB 15. However, he
did state that Al aska has received additional policies it likely
woul d not have received due to the favorable tax structure. He

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 25- April 15, 2015



suggested that the exact nunber would be difficult to determ ne,
but he offered that currently, the state has a substantial
nunber of |arge policies.

6: 12: 36 PM

LI NDA HULBERT stated that she was involved in the insurance
i ndustry as an agent for 25 years and prior to that she spent 20
years in the educational community in Alaska. She said she does
not represent any conpanies, but represents herself. She said
that this protection was available in many states throughout the
United States, including New York, Florida, Texas, and Arizona.
She said that nmany states have the exenption for |ife insurance
and annuities as part of their state policies. She said that if
soneone were to nmove from Alaska to New York and took their
insurance policy with them and changed their residency, they
woul d have this protection. She characterized this as a
fairness issue and an opportunity to create revenue and an
opportunity for savings.

6: 14: 37 PM
CHAI R OLSON asked whet her NAI C has any nodel |egislation.

M5. W NG HElI ER answered no, not with respect to lifting the cap
for creditors since it does not affect Title 21.

6: 15: 02 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KI TO asked whose responsibility Title 9 fel
under .

M5. W NG HElI ER said she was unsure since statutes governing the

Di vision of Insurance fall under Title 21, so she was unsure who
adm nisters the title.

[ SB 47 was hel d over. ]

6:15: 52 PM

ADJ QURNIVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Labor and Commerce Standing Conmttee neeting was adjourned at
6:15 p. m

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 26- April 15, 2015



